
Agenda    Board of Supervisors   May 2, 2022 

Russell County Page 1 

RUSSELL COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

AGENDA – MAY 2, 2022 

BOS Board Room     Regular Meeting        5:00 PM 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters – Potential business locating at the Moss III 
Property.  (Executive Session will begin at 5 p.m. and closed to the general public.  Citizens are welcome to attend and wait in the 
boardroom until Executive Session is complete.) 

INVOCATION   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Awards:  2022 State Winners 

Castlewood High School 

Forensics:  Pam Roberson, Coach 
Wrestling:  Jason Castle, Coach 

Honaker High School 

FBLA Winner:  Betty Davis, Coach 
Forensics:  Lindsey Vencill, Coach; Stacie Smith-Lester, Co-Coach 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 2, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
Girls State Basketball Champions:  Misty Miller, Head Coach 
Assistants:  Darrell Davis, Steven McNulty, Chris Anderson, Brandon Miller 
 
Lebanon High School 
 
Congressional App Challenge – Virginia District Nine – First Place Winners 
Jani Purtee – Coach 
 
Forensics:  Ms. Sarah Moore, Coach 
Wrestling Champions:  Chris Conley, Coach 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan 2022/23 – 2027/28 
 

2.  RC Property Right-of-Way Easement to Key Western LLC 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of April 4, 2022 
  

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. RC DSS Employee Bonus Ordinance………………………………………………..B-1 
 

2. CF Highlands LLC – Land Deed of Gift – Arty Lee Campground Parking…….B-2 
 

3. Building Inspection Services Contract – Pure Salmon Project -                                   
Thompson & Litton Retainer Agreement and Memorandum of                                     
Understanding……………………………………………………………………………B-3 
 

4. RC Property Right-of-Way Easement to Key Western LLC………..…………….B-4 
 

5. Cleveland Ball Park Lease……………………………………………………………..B-5 
 

6. St. Paul Temporary Emergency Agreement for Law Enforcement Services…B-6  



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 2, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. RC Tourism Coordinator Internship – Shiloh Lyttle – Radford University……C-1 
 

2. RC FY21 Financial Audit Report….…………………………………………………..C-2 
 

3. Virginia Coalfield Coalition’s Regional Cell Coverage Project………………….C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
  

4. VDOT 6-Year Secondary Construction Plan Resolution………………………….C-4 
 

5. VDOT Rte. 751 Abandonment Resolution…………………………………………...C-5 
 

6. VDOT Rte. 1080 (North Cedar Acres) Rural Addition Resolution……………….C-6 
 

7. VDOT Rte. 1211 (Cleveland Falls/Barrens) and Rte. 661 (Cleveland                           
Campground) Recreational Access Funds Resolutions………………………….C-7  
 

8. CDBG Grant Resolution - Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Project…….C-8 
 

9. DHCD Industrial Revitalization Fund (IRF) Planning Grant - $50,000…………..C-9 
 

10. Dante Steam Building Restoration Project RFQ….………….....………………….C-10 
 

11. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request - $34,916.93………………………………C-11 
 

12. Regional Improvement Commission Appointment..……………………………....C-12 
 

13. RC Tourism Committee – Jim Lyttle – Resignation……………………………….C-13 
 

14. Board of Supervisors – July 2022 Regular Meeting Date………………………...C-14 
   

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 2, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 4 
 

 
• Conference Center……………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………....J 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….M   



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions concerning a potential business locating 
at the Moss III Property.   

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 5/2/22      5:00 PM 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
Awards:  2022 State Winners 
 
Castlewood High School 
 
Forensics:  Pam Roberson, Coach 
Wrestling:  Jason Castle, Coach 
 
Honaker High School 
 
FBLA Winner:  Betty Davis, Coach 
Forensics:  Lindsey Vencill, Coach; Stacie Smith-Lester, Co-Coach 
 
Girls State Basketball Champions:  Misty Miller, Head Coach 
Assistants:  Darrell Davis, Steven McNulty, Chris Anderson, Brandon Miller 
 
Lebanon High School 
 
Congressional App Challenge – Virginia District Nine – First Place Winners 
Jani Purtee – Coach 
 
Forensics:  Ms. Sarah Moore, Coach 
Wrestling Champions:  Chris Conley, Coach 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  









                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 5/2/22     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

 
1. VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan 2022/23 – 2027/28 

 
2. RC Property Right-of-Way Easement to Key Western LLC 

  
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct Public Hearing on Monday, 

May 2, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the right-of-way easement of 
County Property to the Key Western LLC.  

A copy of the proposed plat is available for review in the Office of the County 
Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during        normal business hours. 

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Board of Supervisors Room                        at 
the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during the 
regular monthly meeting on May 2 , 2022. 

 
 

BY ORDER OF THE                                                 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

 

 

 

     



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 5/2/22       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of April 4, 2022 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



April 04, 2022 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, April 04, 
2022, at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Chair called the meeting to order. 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye  
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
Carl Rhea 
 
Invocation by Caleb Johnson, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag by the Breaks Boy Scouts 
District. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Donna Sproles, Russell County Fair Association addressed the Board concerning the 75th anniversary of 
the Russell County Fair. She presented (1) one dollar to the Board in exchange for another (10) ten-year 
lease with the fair association. 
 
Patrick Brunty, Russell County Department of Social Services stated that he has several positions that 
he has not been able to fill due to lack of qualified applicants. As a result, he has a surplus of funds and 
would like to give his employees a one-time bonus. He asked that the Board approve this request. 
 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator gave the Board an update on the upcoming budget issues and 
discussed the implications of the bonus requested by Mr. Brunty. 
 



 
 

PROCLAMATION OF MAY 2022 AS OLDER AMERICANS’ MONTH 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
proclaim May 2022 has Older Americans’ Month. 
 
The Chair recognized Daniel Hess with The Breaks District Boy Scouts. A $1000 donation was requested. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE NOISE ORDINANCE 
 
Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper, a public hearing was held on the Noise Ordinance. 
The Chair opened the public hearing to comments. 
 
Sandy Hess, Swords Creek commented that she opposes this ordinance for common sense reasons. 
Potential threat to our religious freedoms due to the term “county services.”  She also had concerns on 
how exemptions could be easily removed. 
 
Doug Mays, Lebanon supports the ordinance. 
 
Dana Tucker, Honaker gave a written statement along with his comments.  This statement is attached at 
the end of the minutes. 
 
Cody Jackson, Cleveland has concerns about outside church services, believes this ordinance provides 
an opportunity for the weaponization against neighbors. Finds this ordinance unnecessary, unwise, and 
unpopular. 
 
Brandon Bise, Cleveland stated that he is against this ordinance. 
 
Jony Baker, Lebanon encouraged the Board to look through the eyes of law enforcement. He personally 
thinks this ordinance will cause more harm than good. Law enforcement cannot make good neighbors. 
Could put more burden and stress on law enforcement.  
 
Dwayne Helbert, Lebanon believes that the Board cannot ordinate respect among neighbors and is 
against this ordinance. 
 
Mike Dye, Honaker presented a list names from Harmony Community Church and Revival Center in 
Swords Creek against this ordinance.  This ordinance has not been passed and churches are already 
being bashed. Too much government overreach. 
 
Noah Owens, Honaker commented that he is against this ordinance. 
 
Tim Hess, Honaker stated that he was ordained as a preacher by the church, not the county. He does 
not think that the Board can tell him when or not he can obey God. Don’t tell us that we (churches) are 
exempt when we are not.   
 
Tara Dye, Cleveland spoke against the ordinance, it will solve nothing. This would pit neighbor against 
neighbor. Surely laws are already on the books that can provide solutions without a passing a blanket 



ordinance. At the last board meeting, people were discouraged from speaking if they had similar things 
to say, feels this is not right. The Board is attempting to chip away at our personal freedoms. 
 
B.J. Keene is for this ordinance and is disappointed with the Pastor’s reaction at the last board meeting. 
They should be praying and supporting our people. Asked God to send him a message if he wanted him 
to keep fighting for this. This noise ordinance needs to be passed. 
 
James Nunley, Lebanon has concerns over the easy removal of exemptions, blanket ordinance to 
address a few isolated incidents, may keep honest folks’ quieter. further exhaustion for overworked 
deputies, possibly creating another monitor position thereby impacting taxpayers. 
 
Tara Null, Cleveland spoke out against the ordinance. She feels that property owner rights and religious 
freedoms could be threatened. Exemptions could be voted out and unnecessary calls for law 
enforcement could occur. 
 
Donald Mitchell, Lebanon stated that he is against this ordinance. He respects his neighbors, and they 
respect him. 
 
Don Bush, Belfast stated that he is opposed to this ordinance. He thinks that this is governmental 
overreach and will do more harm than good to our county and its citizens. He understands the issues 
that people have with their neighbors but does not think this will help. Only God can change the 
behavior of people. 
 
Larry Hughes, Lebanon stated that he is against this ordinance. He feels that the whole county should 
not be punished for the few that have complaints.  If passed, this overreach could create problems. We 
need to exercise existing laws to control any problems. 
 
Paul Herndon, Swords Creek is against this, and thinks it is overreach. He also stated that he feels for the 
neighbors that have issues with others. This is about doing the right thing, but we all have wicked people 
around us.  He questioned the number of people that have called in about noisy neighbors over the past 
year.  We have other issues here in the county that are more important.   
 
Sharon Herndon, Swords Creek is against the ordinance. She stated that she has a place that she goes to 
pray and doesn’t control the volume if she is blessed to shout.   
 
Lynn Hess, Swords Creek stated that he is against this ordinance. Everyone should be heard the same. 
This ordinance may not even be enforced due to a Virginia Beach supreme court decision concerning a 
noise ordinance. He feels the expense would be too great to enforce this.  He also stated that we are a 
rural county, and we do not need it. 
 
Jon Smith, Pounding Mill stated that he goes to church in Russell County. He stated that this country 
was founded on religious freedom. Please think about this before you pass it, these people voted you in. 
The county does not pay employees enough in the county.  
 
Travis Woods, Gravel Lick explained that he races motorcycles on his property with no complaints from 
his neighbors. He is against this ordinance. 
 



Randall Smith, Gravel Lick commented against the ordinance. The potential for abuse of this ordinance 
is not right. Enforcement says “other employees” in the ordinance, this is scary.  
 
Don Zambogna, Lebanon commented that anything with nineteen exemptions needs to go. He feels no 
law or ordinance can stop sin. This is not something that this community needs. 
 
Jennifer Fletcher, Moccasin stated that she is against the ordinance.  
 
Nate Kiser, Lebanon stated that Virginia code is already in place to manage some of the complaints. He 
encouraged the Board to trash this ordinance and adopt a disturbing the peace ordinance. This would 
take care of all the problems addressed here. 
 
Wayne Hubbard, Swords Creek stated that there are already laws on the books to take care of many of 
the complaints that we have heard tonight. This ordinance would punish the citizens of the county for 
the few that do have complaints. This would not address drug distribution or activity; this is up to law 
enforcement. 
 
Camron Shelton, Swords Creek asked that the board members vote “no” on this ordinance. 
 
Jody Shelton, Swords Creek stated that he is against this ordinance. Thinks we need to pray for the ones 
that do have noise issues with neighbors. Our veterans have paid the ultimate sacrifice to preserve our 
freedom and rights. 
 
Gina Kraut, Lebanon supports this ordinance. She feels that she has a right to quiet enjoyment. 
Everyone does not have good neighbors. The minute noise comes across her property line makes it her 
business and she has rights also. 
 
Stephen Damron, Swords Creek stated that this is government overreach, and he is against this. We 
serve the same God and if it were not for the churches, we would not have the same rights as we do 
today. We are a small county and do not need a noise ordinance. 
 
Greg Elam, Gravel Lick stated that civil lawsuits may be able to solve the problems. He feels that this is 
an overreach, we are not a big city. This is not good for this county. 
 
James Davis, Maple Gap says the best thing to do is to stop this ordinance and stand for something 
right. The best thing to do is to eliminate this. 
 
Wanda Burke, Lebanon says that her husband will hold everyone accountable, he wanted her to tell the 
Board to vote no on this ordinance. There are ways to deal with bad neighbors besides passing this. 
 
Chester Ball, Honaker is upset that he pays over $700 in taxes, mostly land taxes and no one helps him 
pay them. Taxpayers will start moving out if this ordinance is passed. Also, the churches need to be left 
alone. 
 
Tammy Hess, Swords Creek commented that the majority of the people in the county are saying no to 
the Noise Ordinance.  The majority of people in the last two meetings said no, majority rules.  The Board 
needs to listen. 
 



Ben Price, Belfast stated that he is against this ordinance. He encouraged all the board member to vote 
no. 
 
In addition to the citizens that made comments at the public hearing, a petition signed by several 
citizens in support of the Noise Ordinance is attached at the end of the minutes. 
 
The Chair closed the public hearing. 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 07, 2022 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the March 07, 2022 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $995,157.88 including withholdings and reoccurring.                                             

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Linda Couch, Cleveland addressed the Board concerning funding for Kid’s Fishing Day. 
 

APPROVAL TO APPROPRIATE $300 FOR KID’ S FISHING DAY 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate $300 for Kid’s Fishing Day. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair closed citizen’s comment. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 



Katie Patton, County Attorney addressed questions and concerns about the Noise Ordinance public 
hearing. She also discussed the Russell County PSA, Fairgrounds, Operational Medical Director, Russell 
County Animal Shelter and the COFA By-laws. 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION FOR THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County Public Service Authority Resolution that would limit their stipend to $200 per 
month as opposed to $200 per meeting. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RENEWAL LEASE WITH THE RUSSELL COUNTY FAIR ASSOCIAION 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a renewal lease with the Russell County Fair Association. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A RC OPERATIONAL MEDICAL DIRECTOR CONTRACT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Russell County Operational Medical Director Contract. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD IN MAY 2022 ON THE RC ANIMAL SHELTER PROPERTY EASEMENT  

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve to hold a public hearing on May 2022 on the Russell County Animal Shelter property easement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
 

APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO CIFA BY-LAWS 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
amend the CIFA by-laws to include Dickenson County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
 



Nay:  None 
 

 
APPROVAL TO TABLE THE NOISE ORDINANCE INDEFINITELY 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table the Noise Ordinance indefinitely.  
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
 
The Chair called for a break. The meeting was called back to order by the Chair. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 
 
Russell County Litter Officer James Brooks introduced himself to the Board. 
 
APPROVAL OF A CDGB GRANT RESOLUTION FOR DANTE REGIONAL SEWER LINE EXTENSION PROJECT 

 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a CDGB Grant Resolution for the Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

REBEKAH CAMPBELL HIRED AS ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SPECIALIST 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the hiring of Rebekah Campbell for the accounts payable specialist position. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR THE BUILDING OFFICIAL POSITION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the advertisement of the Russell County Building Official Position due to the upcoming 
retirement of Mickey Rhea. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 
 
 



 
 
 

  MOWER PURCHASE APPROVED FOR THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the purchase of a mower for the maintenance department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO SURPLUS (2) TWO COUNTY VEHICLES  
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
surplus (2) two county vehicles. 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE ADVANCEMENT OF HONAKER PARK’S FY2022/2023 APPROPRIATION 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the advancement of Honaker Park’s budget appropriation for FY 2022/2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE COUNTY ATTORNEY TO DRAFT AN ORDINANCE FOR A PURPOSED BONUS 
FOR DSS EMPLOYEES UPON APPROVAL OF THE DSS BOARD 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Attorney to draft an ordinance for a purposed bonus for Department of Social 
Services employees subject to the Department of Social Services Board approval. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Rebecca Dye 
 

APPROVAL TO RE-APPROPRIATE FUNDS FROM THE RACE PROGRAM FOR HOUSING FOR RUSSELL 
COUNTY STUDENTS AT SWCC 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second by Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to re-appropriate funds from the RACE Program to house Russell County students at Southwest Virginia 
Community College. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Abstain:  Oris Christian 
MOTION FAILED. 
 
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________                                                           _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                         Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 5/2/22      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s April 2022 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s April 2022 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s April 2022 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• April 2022 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports  

 
1. RC DSS Employee Bonus Ordinance………………………………………………..B-1 

 
2. CF Highlands LLC – Land Deed of Gift – Arty Lee Campground Parking…….B-2 

 
3. Building Inspection Services Contract – Pure Salmon Project -                                   

Thompson & Litton Retainer Agreement and Memorandum of                                     
Understanding……………………………………………………………………………B-3 

 
4. RC Property Right-of-Way Easement to Key Western LLC………..…………….B-4 

 
5. Cleveland Ball Park Lease……………………………………………………………..B-5 

 
6. St. Paul Temporary Emergency Agreement for Law Enforcement Services…B-6  

 
 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will be considering the approval of the 
Russell County Department of Social Services’ Employee Bonus Ordinance in 
accordance with the Code of Virginia § 15.2-1508 - Bonuses for Employees of Local 
Governments.  Notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, general or special, the 
governing body of any locality may provide for payment of monetary bonuses to its 
officers and employees. The payment of a bonus shall be authorized by ordinance. 

A copy of the proposed ordinance is available for review in the Office of the County 
Administrator located at 137 Highland Drive, Suite A, Lebanon, Virginia, during normal 
business hours. 

The Board of Supervisors Meeting will be held in the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors Meeting Room at 6 P.M. located at the Russell County Government Center, 
133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during the regular monthly meeting on May 2, 
2022.   

 

BY ORDER OF THE                                                                              
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



AN ORDINANCE, NO. 

 

Authorizing a one-time bonus in the fiscal year 2021-2022 of Five Hundred 

Dollars ($500.00) to all Employees of the Russell County Department of Social 

Services “RCDSS”. 

 

WHEREAS, the RCDSS Board held a special called meeting on April 12, 2022 to 

discuss a potential bonus for all RCDSS employees; and 

WHEREAS, the RCDSS Board discussed the fact that there would be a surplus 

in operating funds at the end of the current fiscal year due to several vacant 

positions; and 

WHEREAS, the Covid-19 Pandemic has created difficulty for RCDSS Board to 

fill all employment vacancies; and 

WHEREAS, due to the inability to staff all available positions the current RCDSS 

employees have assumed more duties and responsibilities; and 

WHEREAS, the RCDSS Board decided that they would like to provide a one-time 

bonus to all existing RCDSS employees in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars 

($500.00); and 

WHEREAS, Virginia Code §15.2-1508 authorizes local governments to provide 

bonuses to employees of the locality. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLOVED, the Board of Supervisors grants the request 

of the RCDSS Board to enact an ordinance pursuant to Virginia Code §15.2-1508 

that would permit the RCDSS Board to provide a one-time bonus in the amount 

of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to be paid to all RCDSS employees; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that for the purposes of this ordinance, the term 

“bonus” shall mean a lump-sum supplement to compensation that is not part of 

an employee’s base salary. The bonuses must be paid out during this fiscal year 

only and shall not pursuant to this ordinance be paid thereafter; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Ordinance shall not be continuing in nature 

and is only applicable to the RCDSS under the circumstances stated herein. 

  



Adopted the 2nd day of May, 2022. 

 

 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon adoption. 

 

 

 

       _________________________________________ 
       Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 
       Russell County Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 

Lonzo Lester, Clerk 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

 

AYES: __________          NAYS: ___________       ABSTENTIONS:_________ 
 



From: Brad J. Kreps
To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Subject: FW: Draft deed for parking area
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2022 12:29:04 PM
Attachments: image001.png

CF Highlands to Russell County deed of gift parking area 041422.docx
Dante Recreation Area Parking Area.pdf

Lonzo…here you go!  Can you confirm receipt?  Thanks!
 

From: George Barlow <gbarlow@TNC.ORG> 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2022 5:23 PM
To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Cc: Bobby Campbell <bc@fmcllc.net>; Gregory S. Meade <gmeade@tnc.org>; Brad J. Kreps <bkreps@TNC.ORG>; Judi Guy
<judi.guy@TNC.ORG>
Subject: Draft deed for parking area
 
Lonzo:  Attached is a draft deed of gift from CF Highlands to the County of Russell for the parking area.  I also attach the
plat.  I did include a reverter in the deed so that if the County stops using the land for recreation parking, CF Highlands
could get it back if it wanted to do that.  I also added a line for the date that the Board approved acquisition of the lot and
an approval line for the County Attorney; I wasn’t sure if you needed those or not in the deed.
 
Please let us know of any changes.  Thank you!
 
GWB
 
George W. Barlow III
Senior Attorney

gbarlow@tnc.org
434-962-2548 (mobile)
434-951-0593 (office)
nature.org

The Nature Conservancy
Charlottesville Legal Office
652 Peter Jefferson Parkway
Suite 190
Charlottesville, VA 22911
 

   

  

 
 

mailto:bkreps@TNC.ORG
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:gbarlow@tnc.org
https://nature.org/


This document was prepared by:

George W. Barlow III, Attorney (VSB #29008)

The Nature Conservancy

652 Peter Jefferson Parkway, Suite 190

Charlottesville, Virginia 2911





Tax Parcel Number: Portion of 159L 

Consideration: None

Property Value: $___________



Exempt from recordation taxes pursuant to § 58.1-811(D) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, and from Circuit Court Clerk’s fees pursuant to §§ 17.1-266 and 17.1-279(E)



THIS DEED OF GIFT is made this 14th day of April 2022, by and between CF HIGHLANDS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Grantor, whose address is 146 East Main Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210, and the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Grantee, whose address is ___________________________. 



W I T N E S S E T H :



	That for and in consideration of the high regard the Grantor holds for the Grantee and in order to assist the Grantee in fulfilling its mission to provide public recreational access, the Grantor does hereby give, grant and convey unto the County of Russell, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Grantee, with special warranty of title, subject to easements, restrictions and reservations of record, the surface and surface only of all that certain tract or parcel of land containing 0.291 acre, more or less, together with the improvements thereon and all rights, privileges, appurtenances, easements and rights of way thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining, and being situate on the waters of Laurel Branch, west of the town of Dante, in the Castlewood Magisterial District of Russell County, Virginia, as shown, designated and described on that certain plat of survey entitled “Plat of Survey Showing a New 0.291 +/- Acre Parcel, and Being a Portion of the ‘Dawson 6,000 Ac. Tract’ Standing in the Name of CF Highlands LLC as Per D.B. 855, Pg. 706, and Listed as Tax Parcel 159L,” dated March 11, 2022 and prepared by Richard L. Bailey, L.S., of Bailey Engineering & Land Surveying, Inc., P.C., which plat is, attached hereto and recorded herewith (the “Property”).

	The Property is a portion of the real estate conveyed to CF Highlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, by deed dated July 11, 2019 from Heartwood Forestland Fund IV Limited Partnership, a North Carolina limited partnership, of record in the Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court of Russell County, Virginia (the “Clerk’s Office”) in Deed Book 855, Page 706.

	It is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between Grantor and Grantee that the Property is given by Grantor to Grantee for parking purposes for public recreational activities only, and that if the Grantee shall not commence such use of the Property within two (2) years after the date of this Deed of Gift, or if the Grantee shall at any time cease to use the Property solely for parking purposes for public recreational activities, then in either event title to the Property shall revert to Grantor or its successor in title, which shall then and thereafter fully have and enjoy all its former estate in and to the Property.  Such reversion shall not be automatic, but in the nature of a right of entry for condition broken or executory interest, which right, if exercised by Grantor upon violation of the above conditions, is exercised by mailing a notice of violation by certified mail to the Grantee.  A copy of such notice shall simultaneously be recorded in the Clerk’s Office.

	Acquisition of the Property as approved by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County at a duly called meeting on ____________________.



[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURES FOLLOW.]










		IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused this instrument to be executed their duly authorized representatives. 

						CF HIGHLANDS LLC

						a Delaware limited liability company

						

						By: _______________________________

							Gregory S. Meade, Authorized Signatory



						

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

CITY/COUNTY OF _______________________, to-wit:



	The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in the jurisdiction aforesaid this ____ day of ________________, 2022 by Gregory S. Meade, who is Authorized Signatory of CF Highlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the company.



	My commission expires: __________________.



						____________________________________

						Notary Public

						Notary Registration No. ________________









[[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.]






COUNTY OF RUSSELL,

						a political subdivision of

						the Commonwealth of Virginia

						

						By: _______________________________

						

						Its: _______________________________

						

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

CITY/COUNTY OF _______________________, to-wit:



	The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in the jurisdiction aforesaid this ____ day of ________________, 2022 by ________________________, who is ______________ of the County of Russell, a political subdivision of	the Commonwealth of Virginia, on behalf of the County of Russell.



	My commission expires: __________________.



						____________________________________

						Notary Public

						Notary Registration No. ________________







Approved as to form:



____________________________

County Attorney




2



1









EXHIBIT A



THE PROPERTY



Exhibit B – Page 1



1








1 
 

This document was prepared by: 
George W. Barlow III, Attorney (VSB #29008) 
The Nature Conservancy 
652 Peter Jefferson Parkway, Suite 190 
Charlottesville, Virginia 2911 
 
 
Tax Parcel Number: Portion of 159L  
Consideration: None 
Property Value: $2,600 

 

Exempt from recordation taxes pursuant to § 58.1-811(D) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, 
and from Circuit Court Clerk’s fees pursuant to §§ 17.1-266 and 17.1-279(E) 

 

THIS DEED OF GIFT is made this 14th day of April 2022, by and between CF 

HIGHLANDS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Grantor, whose address is 146 East 

Main Street, Abingdon, Virginia 24210, and the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, a political subdivision 

of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Grantee, whose address is 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA 

24266.  

 
W I T N E S S E T H : 

 
 That for and in consideration of the high regard the Grantor holds for the Grantee and in 

order to assist the Grantee in fulfilling its mission to provide public recreational access, the Grantor 

does hereby give, grant and convey unto the County of Russell, a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia, Grantee, with special warranty of title, subject to easements, 

restrictions and reservations of record, the surface and surface only of all that certain tract or parcel 

of land containing 0.291 acre, more or less, together with the improvements thereon and all rights, 

privileges, appurtenances, easements and rights of way thereunto belonging or in anywise 

appertaining, and being situate on the waters of Laurel Branch, west of the town of Dante, in the 

Castlewood Magisterial District of Russell County, Virginia, as shown, designated and described 

on that certain plat of survey entitled “Plat of Survey Showing a New 0.291 +/- Acre Parcel, and 



2 
 

Being a Portion of the ‘Dawson 6,000 Ac. Tract’ Standing in the Name of CF Highlands LLC as 

Per D.B. 855, Pg. 706, and Listed as Tax Parcel 159L,” dated March 11, 2022 and prepared by 

Richard L. Bailey, L.S., of Bailey Engineering & Land Surveying, Inc., P.C., which plat is, 

attached hereto and recorded herewith (the “Property”). 

 The Property is a portion of the real estate conveyed to CF Highlands LLC, a Delaware 

limited liability company, by deed dated July 11, 2019 from Heartwood Forestland Fund IV 

Limited Partnership, a North Carolina limited partnership, of record in the Clerk’s Office of the 

Circuit Court of Russell County, Virginia (the “Clerk’s Office”) in Deed Book 855, Page 706. 

 It is hereby covenanted and agreed by and between Grantor and Grantee that the Property 

is given by Grantor to Grantee for parking purposes for public recreational activities only, and that 

if the Grantee shall not commence such use of the Property within two (2) years after the date of 

this Deed of Gift, or if the Grantee shall at any time cease to use the Property solely for parking 

purposes for public recreational activities, then in either event title to the Property shall revert to 

Grantor or its successor in title, which shall then and thereafter fully have and enjoy all its former 

estate in and to the Property.  Such reversion shall not be automatic, but in the nature of a right of 

entry for condition broken or executory interest, which right, if exercised by Grantor upon 

violation of the above conditions, is exercised by mailing a notice of violation by certified mail to 

the Grantee.  A copy of such notice shall simultaneously be recorded in the Clerk’s Office. 

 Acquisition of the Property as approved by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County at 

a duly called meeting on May 2, 2022. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURES FOLLOW.] 

 
  



3 
 

 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused this instrument to 

be executed their duly authorized representatives.  

      CF HIGHLANDS LLC 
      a Delaware limited liability company 
       
      By: _______________________________ 
       Gregory S. Meade, Authorized Signatory 
 
       
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
CITY/COUNTY OF _______________________, to-wit: 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in the jurisdiction aforesaid this 
____ day of ________________, 2022 by Gregory S. Meade, who is Authorized Signatory of CF 
Highlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of the company. 
 
 My commission expires: __________________. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      Notary Registration No. ________________ 
 
 
 
 

[[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 
 
  



4 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, 
      a political subdivision of 
      the Commonwealth of Virginia 
       
      By: _______________________________ 
       
      Its: _______________________________ 
       
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
CITY/COUNTY OF _______________________, to-wit: 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in the jurisdiction aforesaid this 
____ day of ________________, 2022 by ________________________, who is ______________ 
of the County of Russell, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, on behalf of 
the County of Russell. 
 
 My commission expires: __________________. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      Notary Registration No. ________________ 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
____________________________ 
County Attorney 
 



5 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

THE PROPERTY 
 





432 EAST MAIN ST.  ABINGDON, VA 24210
(276)676-3001   (276)676-3190 FAX

ADDISON SURVEYORS

E-MAIL:robert@addisonsurveyors.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OF KEY WESTERN LLC  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY ADDRESS: (VACANT) OVERLOOK DR.. LEBANON, VA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN LOT OR TRACT OF LAND LYING IN THE LEBANON  MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VA. AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 809 PAGE 681. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTE 654

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNVIEW SERVICE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' AND VARIABLE WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS LESTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.417 PG.350

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104RIB3808A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE LASLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.228 PG.151

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104RIZ880

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.S. EASTERLY JR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.225 PG.544

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104RIZ881

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARY KETRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.651 PG.788

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R894

AutoCAD SHX Text
 LEONARD HARMON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.451 PG.195

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104RIAA901

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARGARET RUNYON

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R900

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYARD A. RUCKER III 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.355 PG.757

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R3812A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT CAMPBELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.355 PG.759

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R3812C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET @ POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
87,120  SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.000 AC%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
X       X       X       X        X        X

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOVEN WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 34°09'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 35°51'14" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
267.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 19°23'57" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
117.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 83°26'27" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
131.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°55'09" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 05°06'49" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
165.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 19°14'13" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°20'01" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 48°54'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
272.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 52°47'52" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
235.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 51°24'09" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°57'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
401.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
540'%%P TO RTE 19 BUS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
250'%%P TO RTE 19 BYPASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY. PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LITTLE CEDAR CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LITTLE CEDAR CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: RSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: LKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 12/04/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK NO.:1017005

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.: 8745

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.: LEO_DIV.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.: 16L007

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 12/04/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET:  1  OF  1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYING  LAND PLANNING   CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USCALE 1" = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R916

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.K. ADDISON L.S. 1049

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS BASED ON A CURRENT FIELD  SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND IS CORRECT TO  THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF AND COMPLIES WITH THE  MINIMUM PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS ESTABLISHED BY THE VIRGINIA  STATE BOARD OF ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, LAND  SURVEYORS, AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS. THIS PLAT HAS BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT AND MAY NOT INDICATE ALL ENCUMBRANCES WHICH MAY EXIST ON THE PROPERTY. I CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS AN ACTUAL ON THE GROUND SURVEY AND  THERE ARE NO EASEMENTS OR ENCROACHMENTS VISIBLE ON THE GROUND  OTHER THAN SHOWN HEREON. THIS SURVEY IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL COVENANTS, CONVEYANCES,  RESTRICTIONS, AND VISIBLE OR RECORDED EASEMENTS THAT MAY BE  DISCLOSED BY A FULL AND ACCURATE TITLE SEARCH. NO CEMETERY FOUND. CALLS IN PARENTHESIS DENOTE PLAT OR DEED OF RECORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.K. ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIC. NO. 1049

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/04/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
683-1793

AutoCAD SHX Text
683-1794

AutoCAD SHX Text
683-1795

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
211,085 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.846 AC. %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
154,304 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.542 AC%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SIGNATORY OWNER(S), HEREBY CERTIFY

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIBED HEREON AND THAT AND THAT WE HEREBY ADOPT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAN OF DIVISION OR SUBDIVISION WITH OUR FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSENT, ESTABLISHING THE MINIMUM BUILDING RESTRICTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINES AND DEDICATING ALL STREETS AND OTHER OPEN SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PUBLIC OR PRIVATE USE AS NOTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
____________________________         _________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER                                           DATE OF EXECUTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
____________________________          _________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER                                           DATE OF EXECUTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF ___________________TO WIT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
        MY COMMISSION EXPIRES______________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND THIS ___________DAY OF ___________20____

AutoCAD SHX Text
___________________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, ________________________________, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR THE STATE AND COUNTY AFORESAID, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
_____________________________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHOSE NAME(S) IS (ARE) SIGNED TO THE FOREGOING STATEMENT,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME IN MY STATE AND COUNTY AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTARY PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACKNOWLEDGED THE SAME.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTARY    STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF____________ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
___________________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTRATION NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSSELL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°22'27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
305.58' '

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°22'27"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S24°34'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°20'42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10°57'42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
N29°44'45"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
N55°39'51"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
63.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
N55°14'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S68°09'23"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N47°13'16"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT SHOWING A DIVISION OF THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 83°58'55" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
220.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 10°51'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
307.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYARD A. RUCKER III 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.355 PG.757

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R3812A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 08°51'14" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
463.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 02°31'29" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/04/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 AC. TRACT AND EASEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 24°18'6" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36°53'27" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 48°54'28" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36°53'27" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°51'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 67°20'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 76°20'01" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTH EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER TRACT NO. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTH EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER RUCKER TRACT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1895.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1894.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1892.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1889.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=1852.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=1857.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 1899.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. TOP SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1852.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. TOP SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1857.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 1905.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
177.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 72°19'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
188.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 72°19'25" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTTH R.W.



AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYARD A. RUCKER III 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.355 PG.757

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R3812A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM-2 MON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°20'01" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 48°54'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
272.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 52°47'52" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
235.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" CPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
683-1793

AutoCAD SHX Text
683-1794

AutoCAD SHX Text
211,085 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.846 AC. %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
154,304 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.542 AC%%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 10°51'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
307.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAYARD A. RUCKER III 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED BK.355 PG.757

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX MAP NO.104R3812A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTH EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER TRACT NO. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTH EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER RUCKER TRACT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1895.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1894.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1892.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1889.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 1899.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 1905.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
177.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 72°19'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
188.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 72°19'25" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDTTH R.W.



 

 
 
 

ENGINEERS     ARCHITECTS     SURVEYORS   

T&L    726 Auburn Avenue    Radford, Virginia 24141    tel: 540.633.1897    fax: 540.633.1896    www.T-L.com 

T&L Project No. 716162 
 

RETAINER AGREEMENT TO ENGAGE THE SERVICES OF 
THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. AS A CONSULTANT AND ADVISOR 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered into at Radford, Virginia on May 2, 2022, between Russell County Board of 
Supervisors, whose address is P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, Virginia 24266, hereinafter called "Client", and 
Thompson & Litton, Inc., a Virginia Corporation, whose address is 726 Auburn Avenue, Radford, Virginia 
24141, hereinafter called “Thompson & Litton”, is as follows. 
 
The Client and Thompson & Litton, for mutual considerations and premises hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows. 
 
A. Thompson & Litton agrees to perform certain consulting, architectural, engineering, planning, or 
advisory services for the Client as may be requested by the Client from time to time in reference to 
building construction observation services for the project known as Pure Salmon located on the Russell 
and Tazewell County border to the south and adjacent to Southwest Virginia Community College.  A 
Memorandum of Understanding will be issued when appropriate for each request for service defining the 
required scope of services, schedule, and compensation. 
 
B. Client agrees to pay Thompson & Litton as compensation for its services as outlined in each 
Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
C. Thompson & Litton will submit monthly billings for services rendered and reimbursable expenses 
incurred.  Client agrees to make prompt monthly payments in response to Thompson & Litton's billings. 
 
D. Thompson & Litton expects to start its services promptly after receipt of Client's requests for same.  
 
E. Client and Thompson & Litton agree, in order to assure a clear understanding of all matters related to 
their mutual responsibilities, that the STANDARD PROVISIONS attached to this Agreement hereof are also 
a part of this Agreement.  Client and Thompson & Litton agree that each has read, understands and 
accepts such additional terms and conditions to this Agreement as set forth in the STANDARD 
PROVISIONS. 
 
THOMPSON & LITTON, INC.      
 
BY:     DATE:      April 26, 2022    

        Ronald G. Helton, PE 
TITLE:  Chairman   ATTEST:       
 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
BY:     DATE:        
 
TITLE:    ATTEST:       



 
Standard Provisions 

Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 
Page 1 of 3 

 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 
 

1. Thompson & Litton Agrees: 
A. To perform professional services described in the 

Agreement, which include normal engineering and 
architectural engineering services and normal 
professional services incidental thereto. 

B. To consult with Client to determine his requirements 
and review available data. 

C. To advise Client as to the necessity of his providing or 
obtaining from others data or services of type not 
included in the services of Thompson & Litton. 

2. The Client Agrees: 
A. To designate a person to act with authority on his behalf 

in respect to all aspects of the project, shall examine 
and respond promptly to Thompson & Litton’s 
submissions, and shall give prompt written notice to 
Thompson & Litton whenever he observes or otherwise 
becomes aware of any defect in the project or in 
Thompson & Litton’s services. 

B. To guarantee access to and make all provisions for 
Thompson & Litton to enter upon public and private 
property. 

C. To provide such legal, accounting, special consultants, 
independent cost estimates, and insurance counseling 
services as may be required and to furnish Thompson & 
Litton data by or services of others as necessary, of 
types not included in the services of Thompson & Litton, 
all of which Thompson & Litton may rely upon in 
performing his services. 

D. To provide full information regarding his requirements 
for the project and the services of Thompson & Litton. 

E. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and not 
withstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to 
limit the total liability, in the aggregate, of Thompson & 
Litton and Thompson & Litton’s officers, directors, 
employees, agents, or subconsultants, or any of them, 
to the total compensation received by Thompson & 
Litton under this Agreement, or the total amount of 
$50,000, whichever is greater. 

F. That Thompson & Litton shall not be responsible for the 
acts or omissions of any contractor, and/or 
subcontractor, or any of the contractor(s)’ agents, or 
employees or any other person except his own 
employees and agents with regard to the project or any 
of the work or management of the project. 

3. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
A. Reuse of Documents and Electronic Files. 

In accepting and utilizing any drawings or other data 
generated and provided by Thompson & Litton, 
including all documents on any form of electronic 
media, the Client covenants and agrees that all such 
drawings and data are instruments of service of 
Thompson & Litton, who shall be deemed the author of 
the drawings and data, and shall retain all common law, 
statutory law and other rights, including copyrights. The 
electronic files submitted by Thompson & Litton to the 

Client are submitted for an acceptance period of 30 
days. Any defects the Client discovers during this period 
will be reported to Thompson & Litton and will be 
corrected as part of Thompson & Litton’s scope of 
services of this Agreement. Correction of defects 
detected and reported after the acceptance period are 
not part of the scope of services of this Agreement. The 
client further agrees not to use these drawings and 
data, in whole or in part, for any purpose or project 
other than the project which is the subject of this 
Agreement. The Client agrees to waive all claims against 
Thompson & Litton resulting in any way from any 
unauthorized changes or reuse of the drawings and data 
for any other project by anyone other than Thompson & 
Litton. In addition, the Client agrees, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold 
Thompson & Litton harmless from any damage, liability 
or cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs 
of defense, arising from any changes made by anyone 
other than Thompson & Litton or from any reuse of the 
drawings and data without the prior written consent of 
Thompson & Litton. Under no circumstances shall 
transfer of the drawings and other instruments of 
service on electronic media for use by the Client be 
deemed a sale by Thompson & Litton, and Thompson & 
Litton makes no warranties, either express or implied, of 
merchantability and fitness for any particular purpose. 

B. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost. 
Since Thompson & Litton has no control over the cost of 
labor, materials, or equipment or over contractor(s), or 
operator(s), methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding, management practices, or market 
conditions, his opinions of probable costs when 
provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his 
experience and qualifications and represent his best 
judgment as a design professional familiar with the 
construction industry, but Thompson & Litton cannot 
and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or the 
actual construction costs will not vary from opinions of 
probable cost prepared by him. If Client wishes greater 
assurance as to the construction costs, he shall employ 
an independent cost estimator. Thompson & Litton’s 
services to modify the project to bring the cost within 
any limitation established by Client will be considered 
services beyond the scope of Agreement and paid for as 
such by the Client. 

C. Late Payment. 
1. If Client fails to make any payment due Thompson & 

Litton for services and expenses within sixty (60) days 
after receipt of Thompson & Litton’s bill, thereafter, 
the amounts due Thompson & Litton shall include a 
charge at the rate established on Thompson & 
Litton’s Schedule of Reimbursable Expenses from said 
sixtieth day; and in addition Thompson & Litton may 
after giving seven day’s written notice to Client, 



Standard Provisions 
Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 

Page 2 of 3 

suspend services under this Agreement until Client 
has paid in-full all amounts due for services and 
expenses, including reasonable fees incurred with 
relation to collection therefore. 

2. Client further agrees to authorize Thompson & Litton 
and our affiliates, as well as their affiliates which 
include debt collectors, to contact you at any 
telephone number associated with your account, 
including wireless telephone numbers, which could 
result in charges to Client. Methods of contact include 
but are not limited to the use of pre-recorded 
voicemail messages, artificial voicemail messages, 
automatic telephone dialing systems, predictive 
telephone dialing systems, automated SMS text 
message reminders, and facsimile as applicable. 

D. Dispute Resolution. 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the 
design or construction of the project or following the 
completion of the project, the Client and Thompson & 
Litton agree that all disputes between them arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement shall be submitted to 
nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise. The Client and Thompson & Litton further 
agree to include a similar mediation provision in all 
agreements with independent contractors and 
consultants retained for the project and to require all 
independent contractors and consultants also to include 
a similar mediation provision in all agreements with 
subcontractors, subconsultants, suppliers or fabricators 
so retained, thereby providing for mediation as the 
primary method for dispute resolution between the 
parties to those agreement. 

E. Arbitration. 
In the event the parties to this Agreement are unable to 
reach a settlement of any dispute arising out of the 
services under this Agreement, in accordance with 
Paragraph D. (Dispute Resolution), then such disputes 
shall be settled by binding arbitration by an arbitrator to 
be mutually agreed upon by the parties and shall 
proceed in accordance with the rules of the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. If the parties cannot agree on a 
single arbitrator, then the arbitrator(s) shall be selected 
in accordance with the above referenced rules. 

F. Termination. 
Either the Client or Thompson & Litton may terminate 
this Agreement at any time with or without cause upon 
giving the other party thirty (30) calendar days prior 
written notice. The Client shall within sixty (60) calendar 
days of termination, pay Thompson & Litton for all 
services rendered and all costs incurred up to the date 
of termination, in accordance with the compensation 
provisions of this contract. The Client shall reimburse 
Thompson & Litton for all expenses reasonably incurred 
by Thompson & Litton in connection with termination of 
this Agreement, including but not limited to 
demobilization, reassignment of personnel, and space 
and equipment costs. 

G. Successors and Assigns. 
Client and Thompson & Litton each binds himself and 
his partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 
assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement, neither Client nor Thompson & Litton 
shall assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other. 
Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any 
personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of 
any public body, which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits 
hereunder to anyone other than Client and Thompson & 
Litton. 

H. Jobsite Safety. 
Neither the professional activities of Thompson & 
Litton, nor the presence of Thompson & Litton or its 
employees and subconsultants at a construction site, 
shall relieve the General Contractor and any other entity 
of their obligations, duties and responsibilities including, 
but not limited to, construction means, methods, 
sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for 
performing, superintending or coordinating all portions 
of the work of construction in accordance with the 
contract documents and any health or safety 
precautions required by any regulatory agencies. 
Thompson & Litton and its personnel have no authority 
to exercise any control over any construction contractor 
or other entity or their employees in connection with 
their work or any health or safety precautions. The 
Client agrees that the General Contractor is solely 
responsible for jobsite safety and warrants that this 
intent shall be made evident in the Client’s agreement 
with the General Contractor. The Client also agrees that 
the Client, Thompson & Litton and Thompson & Litton’s 
consultants shall be indemnified and shall be made 
additional insured under the General Contractor’s 
general liability insurance policy. 

I. Environmental and Health Hazards. 
It is acknowledged by both parties that, unless 
otherwise specifically designated in this Agreement, 
Thompson & Litton’s scope of services does not include 
any services related to asbestos or hazardous or toxic 
materials. In the event Thompson & Litton or any other 
party encounters asbestos or hazardous or toxic 
materials at the jobsite, or should it become known in 
any way that such materials may be present at the 
jobsite or any adjacent areas that may affect the 
performance of Thompson & Litton’s services, 
Thompson & Litton may, at its option and without 
liability for consequential or any other damages, 
suspend performance of services on the project until 
the general contractor or other responsible party  
retains appropriate specialist consultants or contractors 
to identify, abate and/or remove the asbestos or 
hazardous or toxic materials, and warrant the jobsite is 
in full compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 



Standard Provisions 
Agreement to Engage the Services of Thompson & Litton as a Consultant and Advisor 

Page 3 of 3 

the jobsite is in full compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. The Client agrees, notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Agreement, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless 
Thompson & Litton, his or her officers, partners, 
employees, agents and consultants from and against 
any and all claims, suits, demands, liabilities, losses, or 
costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense 
costs, resulting or accruing to any and all persons, firms, 
or any other legal entity, caused by, arising out of or in 
any way connected with the detection, presence, 
handling, removal, abatement, or disposal of any 
asbestos or hazardous or toxic substances, products or 
materials that exist on, about or adjacent to the jobsite, 
whether liability arises under breach of contract or 
warrant, tort, including negligence, strict liability or 
statutory liability or any other cause of action. 

J. The financial arrangements set forth in this Agreement 
are agreed to on the basis of prompt payment of 
Thompson & Litton’s bills and orderly and continuous 
progress of the project. If there are protracted delays 
for reasons beyond Thompson & Litton’s control, Client 
and Thompson & Litton agree to renegotiate the basis 
of Thompson & Litton’s compensation in order to take 
into consideration changes in price indices and pay scale 
applicable to the period when Thompson & Litton’s 
services are in fact being rendered. 

K. This Agreement and these Standard Provisions 
represent the entire understanding between Client and 
Thompson & Litton in respect to the project and may 
only be modified in writing signed by both Client and 
Thompson & Litton. 

L. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the 
principal place of business of Thompson & Litton. 

M. Special Services of Thompson & Litton are defined as 
any services not included in the scope of Thompson & 
Litton’s services set forth in the Agreement. Such 
services, if desired and as requested by Client, shall be 
supplied by Thompson & Litton according to the 
guidelines set forth in the latest edition (current) of 
A.S.C.E. Manual 45. Unless otherwise specifically 
designated, scope of Thompson & Litton’s services shall 
not include core borings, probings and subsurface 
investigations, hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests 
and inspections of samples, materials and equipment, 
appropriate professional interpretation of all the 
foregoing, property descriptions, zoning and deed 
restrictions, or any other special services or 
consultations not covered in Paragraph A of the 
Agreement. 

N. If scope, which includes time, of the project or 
Thompson & Litton’s work is changed materially, 
Thompson & Litton’s compensation shall be subject to 
renegotiation. 

O. This Agreement is not intended to be for the benefit of 
any person or entity; and the parties hereto shall not be 
liable or responsible to any such nonparty by reason of 

this Agreement or any acts or omissions arising out of 
this Agreement, or any breach thereof. 

P. Thompson & Litton agrees to comply with Executive 
Order 11246, as amended, Section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the 
Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 
1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. 4212, and their 
implementing regulations at 41 CFR Chapter 60-741.5(a) 
and 41 CFR Chapter 600-300.5(a). These regulations 
prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals on 
the basis of disability or protected veteran status and 
requires affirmative action by Thompson & Litton to 
employ and advance in employment qualified 
individuals with disabilities and qualified protected 
veterans. 



 

 
 

        

T&L    329 Main Street    P.O. Box 179    Tazewell, Virginia 24651    tel: 276.988.7921    fax: 276.988.7924    www.T-L.com 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING NO. 1 

TO RETAINER AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND 

THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. 
 

 
 Project:  Pure Salmon 850,000 S.F. Processing Plant 
   Building Official Duties & Responsibilities 
   T&L Project No. 16719 
   (Original Retainer No. 716162) 
 

Owner:  Russell County Board of Supervisors 
   P.O. Box 1208 
   Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

Engineer: Thompson & Litton, Inc. 
   726 Auburn Avenue 
   Radford, Virginia 24141 
 

Date:  May 2, 2022 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors desires to retain the services of Thompson & Litton, Inc. (T&L) to 
assist in its capacity of Building Official duties and responsibilities as required by the Laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia for the 850,000 square foot (S.F.) Pure Salmon processing plant at Wardell, 
Virginia. Accordingly, T&L will become the point of contact with Pure Salmon on matters pertaining to 
permits to construct the facility. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 

shall perform the following 
services: 
 

 Establish a document management system for the project relative to the construction of the 
850,000 S.F. Pure Salmon processing plant. 
 

 Review previously developed plans, specifications, drawings, and documents relative to the 
 

 
  

establish lines of communication, project and submittal schedules, and clarify the roles, duties, 
and responsibilities of the parties. 
 

 



Memorandum of Understanding No. 1
T&L Project No. 16719
May 2, 2022
Page 2

T&L  www.T-L.com

T&L will review and comment on all documents relative to building permits for the Russell County 
Building Official prior to their issuance of permits to Pure Salmon for this project.

T&L, in its capacity as consultant and advisor, will in addition to its responsibility to review 
documents, perform onsite inspections and meetings as it is deemed necessary in order to gain a 
clear understanding of the design and construction intent before making any recommendations 
to the Russell County Building Official. The number of visits and attendees are unknown at this 
time.

:

Provide T&L with a private office onsite with desk, chair, filing cabinet, and internet access at such 
time that administration facilities are provided to Russell County by Pure Salmon.

Provide digital access to all correspondence and submittals to date relative to the project. 
Communicate the same requirements to Tazewell County and other project related parties 
including, Pure Salmon (its designer and contractors), Bizzack Construction, BBB Engineering, and 
other parties that have contractual relationships in the construction of the project.

Issue Building Permit to Pure Salmon and/or its contractual designee upon final recommendation 
and agreement with T&L. This shall be done within seven (7) days of written notice of 
recommendation to issue the permit by T&L.

Make all formal communications to state and federal regulatory agencies as required and in its 
capacity of Building Official.

Exclusions:

Services related to the permitting of an 8,500 S.F. Administration Building separate from and not 
a part of the 850,000 S.F. processing plant.

Erosion and sedimentation control permitting and stormwater management, oversight, and/or 
management.

Compensation:

T&L will invoice for all services per diem in accordance with the attached Standard Hourly Billing Rate 
Schedule. The schedule of hourly rates provided are adjusted on July 1st of each year following the year of 
execution of this agreement. Therefore, rates will be adjusted on July 1, 2023 and each year on the same 
day thereafter.

Owner agrees to make prompt monthly paym
Billing Rate Schedule.



Memorandum of Understanding No. 1
T&L Project No. 16719
May 2, 2022
Page 3

T&L  www.T-L.com

Standard Provisions:

All the terms and conditions set forth in the Retainer Agreement dated February 22, 2022, between the 
Russell County Board of Supervisors and T&L are incorporated by reference into this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THOMPSON & LITTON, INC.

BY: BY: 
Ronald G. Helton, PE

          Chairman
        Title Title

        April 26, 2022
        Date Date



 
 
 

EFFECTIVE: Through June 30, 2023 
 
 THOMPSON & LITTON 
  SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES  

                    TYPICAL HOURLY RATES 
INDIVIDUAL CLASSIFICATIONS                (Current Rates)   
Officer-in-Charge   $ 275.00 
Associate   $ 217.00 
Senior Project Manager   $ 198.00 
Project Manager   $ 149.00 
Senior Engineer   $ 179.00 
Project Engineer   $ 138.00 
Design Engineer   $   108.00 
Senior Technician   $ 103.00 
Technician   $ 70.00 
Senior Architect   $ 176.00 
Project Architect   $ 123.00 
Intern Architect   $ 90.00 
Senior Surveyor   $ 171.00 
Surveyor   $ 105.00 
Senior Survey Technician   $ 76.00 
Survey Technician   $ 66.00 
3-Person Survey Party   $ 227.00 
2-Person Survey Party   $ 158.00 
Senior Construction Contract Administrator   $ 161.00 
Construction Contract Administrator   $ 110.00 
Senior Construction Representative   $ 110.00 
Construction Representative   $ 79.00 
Specifications and Technical Composer   $ 77.00 
Administrative Assistant   $ 90.00 
Clerical   $ 62.00  
 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Consultants and subcontractors will be billed at Direct Cost times 1.20. 
Transportation and out-of-town subsistence will be billed at Direct Cost times 1.15. 
 
Mileage for use of personal or company vehicles – Effective IRS mileage rate. 
 
Long distance telephone calls, facsimiles, printing or items not customarily provided by the Consultant shall 
be charged at Direct Cost times 1.15. 
 
REPRODUCTION:   A) 8 1/2 x 11 page, per copy (black/white) ................................................... $0.15 

B) 8 1/2 x 11 page, per copy (color) .............................................................. $1.25 
                         C) Large Drawings, per square foot ............................................................... $0.20 
   D) Large Drawings, per square foot (color) ................................................... $1.25 
 
FINANCIAL: Invoices are payable within thirty days. Interest is, therefore, charged in the event of non-
payment within sixty days. An interest rate 1% per month will be charged and applied to the unpaid balance 
monthly. 

Project #16719



















 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-14 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for April 2022: 

 
1. RC Tourism Coordinator Internship – Shiloh Lyttle – Radford University……C-1 

 
2. RC FY21 Financial Audit Report….…………………………………………………..C-2 

 
3. Virginia Coalfield Coalition’s Regional Cell Coverage Project………………….C-3 

 
REQUESTS 

  
4. VDOT 6-Year Secondary Construction Plan Resolution………………………….C-4 

 
5. VDOT Rte. 751 Abandonment Resolution…………………………………………...C-5 

 
6. VDOT Rte. 1080 (North Cedar Acres) Rural Addition Resolution……………….C-6 

 
7. VDOT Rte. 1211 (Cleveland Falls/Barrens) and Rte. 661 (Cleveland                           

Campground) Recreational Access Funds Resolutions………………………….C-7  
 

8. CDBG Grant Resolution - Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Project…….C-8 
 

9. DHCD Industrial Revitalization Fund (IRF) Planning Grant - $50,000…………..C-9 
 

10. Dante Steam Building Restoration Project RFQ….………….....………………….C-10 
 

11. CSA Supplemental Allocation Request - $34,916.93………………………………C-11 
 

12. Regional Improvement Commission Appointment..……………………………....C-12 
 

13. RC Tourism Committee – Jim Lyttle – Resignation……………………………….C-13 
 

14. Board of Supervisors – July 2022 Regular Meeting Date………………………...C-14 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Various  
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


RUSSELL COUNTY TOURISM  
COLLEGE INTERNSHIP  

 

The Russell County Tourism Internship performs work in multiple aspects of the tourism program 
for Russell County attracting tourists to the County for its historical and natural assets.  The intern 
will work with county staff, committees, local businesses, and other tourism representatives to 
promote visitation.  The intern must exercise tact and courtesy in frequent contact with county 
staff, volunteers, business representatives, agency representatives, and the general public.   The 
intern reports directly to the County Administrator. 

1.    Works with the Tourism Advisory Committee.  Attend Russell County tourism related 
training workshops, seminars, and meetings.   

2.    Perform Virginia Tourism Corporation training and video conferences.  Research various 
professional journals and other literature to enhance and maintain knowledge of trends and 
developments in the tourism industry. 

3.    Assists in the creation of marketing media, including brochures, posters, flyers, print and 
web advertisements, and social media.  Assists in maintaining and periodically update County’s 
Tourism website and social media accounts. 
 
4.    Assists with the distribution and placement of marketing items; routinely assesses inventory 
throughout sites for restocking or removal.  Assists with the placement and evaluates the 
effectiveness of distribution locations. 
 
5.    Assists with business and other tourism representatives to share information to better 
promote Russell County as a tourism destination.  Assists with lodging, restaurants, and 
specialty shop owners/managers to create special package deals; maintains a constant flow of 
useful and accurate information.  Explores opportunities to expand tourism assets and 
information services.   
 
6.    Assist with tourism presentations to local civic, business, historical, and cultural groups 
regarding Russell’s tourism efforts.  Assists with local and regional events that impact tourism. 
 
7.    Assists with consumer inquiries via phone, mail, email and/or in person.  Assist in preparing 
tourism informational packets and up-to-date information for local event calendars, Virginia 
Tourism Corporation website, and other travel-related websites. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tracy
Highlight



 

 

 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

 
To the Members of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Russell, Virginia 
Lebanon, Virginia 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the County of Russell, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. These financial statements collectively comprise the County’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not audit 
the financial statements of the Russell County Public Service Authority (PSA), which represents 36% and 7%, 
respectively, of the assets and revenues of the discretely presented component units.  Those statements 
were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related 
to the amounts included for the PSA is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, 
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 

- 2 -

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Russell, Virginia, as of June 30, 2021, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle  
 
As described in Note 28 to the financial statements, in 2021, the County adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Restatement of Beginning Balances  
 
As described in Note 28 to the financial statements, in 2021, the County restated beginning balances to 
reflect a prior period adjustment to prepaid expenditures and the requirements of GASB Statement No. 84.  
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 
comparison information and schedules related to pension and OPEB funding on pages 102-104 and 105-125 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We and other auditors have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.  The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.   
 

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 3 -

Tracy
Highlight



 

 

Supplementary and Other Information 
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County of Russell, Virginia’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, other 
supplementary information, and other statistical information are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 

The other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as 
described above, and the other auditors, the other supplementary information and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory section and other statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 2022, 
on our consideration of the County of Russell, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of County of Russell, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the County of Russell, Virginia’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
Blacksburg, Virginia 
January 31, 2022 

- 4 -



    

 

 
 
 
Auditor of Public Accounts 
P.O. Box 1295 
Richmond, VA  23218 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the County of Russell, Virginia, for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and such audit included the procedures required by Chapter 552 of the 2021 Acts of Assembly.   
 
We identified the following sources of funds of the Sheriff’s office: 
 

1. Drug Forfeitures 
 
Our audit found the Sheriff of County of Russell, Virginia has a system of internal controls for the funds 
listed that is adequate for complying with the Virginia Sheriffs Accounting Manual and the Code of Virginia, 
§15.2‐1609 through §15.2‐1625. 
 
We are sending this letter in accordance with the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns 
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts, Section 2‐7, Sheriff’s Internal Controls.   
 
               

 
 
April 21, 2022 
 
 
cc:  Sheriff Steve Dye 
  County of Russell, Virginia 
 
  Board of Supervisors 
  County of Russell, Virginia 
 

Tracy
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

April 25, 2022 
 
Steve Breeding, Chairman 
Virginia Coalfield Coalition 
224 Clydesway Drive 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
 
RE: Virginia Coalfield Coalition’s Regional Cell Coverage Project 
 
Dear Mr. Breeding:  
 
Russell County Board of Supervisors is pleased to support the Virginia Coalfield Coalition (VCC) in its 
application to ARC POWER for planning funds that will support the development of a regional cell 
coverage study that includes the Southwest Virginia coalfield counties of Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, 
Russell, Scott, Tazewell and Wise, along with their respective towns, as well as the City of Norton. Our 
organization recognizes the importance of expanded cell coverage in our region, not only for the 
purposes of economic development and workforce retention, but also in the interest of making our 
world-class tourism assets more attractive to visitors. 
 
A key example of this is the ongoing development of Virginia’s newest state park, Clinch River State 
Park, which will offer visitors access to the highest concentration of rare and imperiled freshwater 
animals in the country. The Clinch River is home to rare mussels, darters and upwards of 44 other 
species, including excellent sport fish. However, cellular coverage along the Clinch remains quite poor. In 
addition to areas surrounding the Clinch River, cell coverage is inadequate or nonexistent at several 
other key outdoor recreation assets within the region, including Devil’s Bathtub in Scott County, 
Spearhead Trails systems in and around the towns of Haysi and Pocahontas, and sections of Breaks 
Interstate Park and the nearby John Flannagan Dam and Reservoir, among others. 
 
While the natural beauty and unique terrain of the region makes it a destination for both tourists and 
adventurers, much work remains to help these assets reach their full potential. As our region’s economy 
depends more than ever on tourism for revenue and job creation, funding these projects would give the 
region a deserved and much needed boost.  
 
To that end, Russell County Board of Supervisors fully supports the VCC’s efforts to plan for greater 
cellular coverage throughout its seven-county footprint.  
 
Sincerely, 
LONZO LESTER 
Lonzo Lester, MBA, CPC, VCO  

Tracy
Highlight



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1  District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

     

 

RESOLUTION 
APPROVAL OF SECONDARY HIGHWAY SIX-YEAR PLAN                                              

(2022/23 THROUGH 2027/28) 

AND CONSTRUCTION PRIORITY LIST (2022/23) 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

WHEREAS, Sections 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, 
provides the opportunity for each county to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation 
in developing a Secondary Six-year Road Plan, and 

WHEREAS, this Board had previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan. in 
accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures and 
participated in a public hearing on the proposed Plan (2022/23 through 2027/28) as well as the 
Construction Priority List (2022/23) on May 2, 2022, after duly advertised so that all citizens of 
the County had the opportunity to participate in said hearing and to make comments and 
recommendations concerning the proposed Plan and Priority List, and 

WHEREAS, Paul Cole, Assistant Residency Administrator. Virginia Department of 
Transportation appeared before the Board and recommended approval of the Six-year Plan for 
Secondary Roads FY 2023 through FY 2028 and the Construction Priority List (2022/23) for 
Russell County, Virginia. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, 
Virginia that since said Plan appears to be in the best interests of the Secondary Road System 
in Russell County and of the citizens residing on the Secondary System, said Secondary Six-
year Plan (2022/23 through 2027/28) and Construction Priority List (2022/23) are hereby 
approved as presented at the public hearing. 

DONE this the 2nd day of May 2022. 

Recorded Vote Moved By:_______________ 

Seconded By: _________________ 

Yeas:  ______ 

Nays:  ______ 

 

Signed:___________________________ 

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





Russell County BOS 
VDOT Update 
May 2, 2022 
 
Board Action Requests 
 

 Consider resolution to add approximately 0.07 miles of Route 1080 (North Cedar Acres) to 
the VDOT secondary system. This resolution – assuming the Board wishes to bring the road 
into the system – must be passed prior to the 6 year secondary road construction resolution. 

 
 Hold public hearing for the County’s FY 23 – FY 28 secondary construction plan. VDOT has 

coordinated the advertisement for the hearing with local newspapers. 
 

 Consider resolution adopting the County’s FY 23 – FY 28 secondary construction plan. The 
resolution has been submitted to the County Administrator under separate cover. A brief 
summary of the plan is attached to this report. 
 

 Consider application for funding through VDOT’s Recreational Access Fund for 
improvements to Route 1211 (access to the falls / Cleveland Barrens) and Route 661 
access to the Cleveland Campground. 
 

 Consider resolution abandoning Route 751; the route no longer physically exists. The 
resolution is needed in order for the official system inventory to reflect the field conditions. 

 
Maintenance Activities – Completed / Underway 
 
Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities, including: 
 

• Seven drain pipes were replaced on Route 640 in advance of repaving operations later this 
summer. 
 

• Brush cutting was completed on segment(s) of Routes 737.  
 

• Pothole patching operations continued with patching completed on various routes primarily 
within the Blackford Area Headquarters and routes intersecting Route 19.  
 

• Maintenance work (spreading gravel, blading) was conducted on routes 622, 638, 640, side 
routes intersecting Route 640, 722, 746 and 855. 

 

• Pipes were opened on Route 669.  
 

• Ditching was completed on portions of Routes 19, 620, 622, 640, 645, 657 and 694. 
 

• Shoulder repairs were completed on Routes 19, 67 and 640. 
 

• Down trees were removed from Routes 619 and 770. 
 

 

Tracy
Highlight



Maintenance Activities - Planned 
 

• Culvert replacement and associated ditching on Routes 67 and 600.  
 

• Slope stabilization on Routes 600 and 712 
 
 

• Culvert replacement & associated ditching on Route 730 (Requires permit) 
 

• Ditching on Route 740  
 

• Boom ax work along Route 661 
 

• Sinkhole repair on Route 19 
 

• Installation of sand barrels between guardrail and signal pole at the WalMart entrance / 
Route 19 intersection, once signal reconstruction is completed. 
 

• Machine pavement patching in advance of the summer resurfacing work (see list of routes 
to be resurfaced at the end of this report). 
 

• Roadside mowing operations are anticipated to begin mid to late May. 
 

 
 
Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Projects 
 
Tumbez Hollow Rural Rustic (Drainage)  
 
The balance of the drain pipe installation on the project has been completed. VDOT crews will be 
shaping the road bed in preparation of paving work.   
 
Staff is monitoring the performance of the drainage improvements through the spring and should 
adjustments be needed to the drainage, the adjustments will be completed prior to paving 
operations.  
 
 
Thomas Warner Rural Rustic Project 
 
Work up to the point of placing the stone base for asphalt is complete. Limited repair of drainage 
elements installed last year and installation of an additional pipe are planned prior to paving 
operations. 
 
 
Future 6 Year Plan Projects 
 
Blanch Davis Road (Route 606) is the next project on the 6 year plan list and receives 
approximately 40% of its funding in July, assuming the Board approves the proposed 6 year plan 
as presented. The residency plans to complete drain pipe installation and other work this fall with 
paving to be completed following receipt of balance of funding in July 2023. 
 



North Cedar Acres is a small project (adding approximately 0.07 miles) of road utilizing residual 
funding from previously completed projects proposed for completion this summer / fall. While it has 
been added to the 6 year plan (again, assuming the Board approves the proposed 6 year plan as 
presented) its addition does not delay the (or push back) other projects already on the plan as it is 
funded using residual funds.  
 
 
 
Non – VDOT Projects 
 
Pure Salmon Project 
 
No new information to report this month, a recent site visit indicated significant progress on the 
construction of the connection to Route 19. The residency understands utility relocation will be 
required before the final blasting / excavation can be completed to make the connection to Route 
19.  
 
St Paul Welcome Center 
 
No new information to report this month. 

 

2022 Summer Pavement Resurfacing 
 
The following routes are scheduled for repaving this summer: 
 

• Route 611:  Intersection with Route 65 to end of pavement 

• Route 614:  Intersection with Route 71 to intersection with Route 657. 

• Route 615:  Intersection with Route 628 to intersection with Route 628 

• Route 636:  Intersection with Route 640 to intersection with Route 711. 

• Route 640:  Intersection with Route 82 to intersection with Route 740. 

• Route 651:  Intersection with Route 645 to end of state maintenance. 

• Route 737:  Intersection with Route 1015 to end of state maintenance. 

• Route 780:  Intersection with Route 67 to intersection with Route 637. 

• Route 1080: Intersection with Route 657 to Dead End. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1-
800-FOR-ROAD call to enter work order requests into VDOT’s tracking system. 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



From: John Bolling
To: Lester, Lonzo
Cc: William Counts; Jeff Buchanan
Subject: Route 751 abandonment
Date: Friday, April 22, 2022 3:41:51 PM
Attachments: image001.png

PROJECT ADJUSTMENT RESOLUTION SAMPLE_Oct 2014.docx
Importance: High

Lonzo,
 
Back in the 80’s, VDOT constructed a HUD Urban Renewal Site & a channel change
on the Clinch River under VDOT project 7058-097-105, G302, G303.  This is where the
St. Paul sewage treatment plant is located.  As a part of that project, Route 751 was
demolished and is no longer there (it’s in the river now).  However, a formal
abandonment of Route 751 was not done.  To correct this oversight, we need to get a
resolution on the May 2nd agenda.  Sample resolution is attached.  The Lebanon
Residency requests that this item placed on the May 2, 2022 BOS agenda.
 
If you have any questions, give me a call
 
Thanks & have a great weekend!
 

JOHN BOLLING
Land Development Engineer
Lebanon Residency
Virginia Department of Transportation
276-415-3433 Office | 276-623-7199 Mobile
john.bolling@VDOT.Virginia.gov
 

 
 

mailto:john.bolling@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:william.counts@vdot.virginia.gov
mailto:jeff.buchanan@vdot.virginia.gov
https://www.virginiadot.org/
mailto:john.bolling@VDOT.Virginia.gov










The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 2nd day of May 2022, adopted the following:



RESOLUTION FOR HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES RESULTING FROM THE CONSTRUCTION OF VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT 7058-097-105, G302, G303



[bookmark: _GoBack]WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has developed a HUD Urban Renewal Site and constructed a channel change of the Clinch River circa 1981 under Project 7058-097-105, G302, G303; and



WHEREAS, the project sketch and VDOT Form(s) AM4.3, attached and incorporated herein as a part of this resolution, define adjustments required in the secondary systems of state highways as a result of that construction, and



WHEREAS, a new Town of Saint Paul maintained road serves the same citizens as served by those portions of old secondary road identified on the project sketch and VDOT Form(s) AM4.3 to be abandoned, which portions no longer serve a public need, and



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation to abandon Segment(s) A-B from the secondary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-912 of the Code of Virginia, and



BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the ___ County Board of Supervisors orders that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Resident Engineer for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 



Recorded Vote 					A Copy Teste:

Moved By:  ________________________

Seconded By:  ______________________

Yeas:  ____________________________							

Nays: 					       		(Name), (Title)












[image: ]






[image: ]







image1.emf

Street NameTo TerminiLength


Number Of 


Lanes


Recordation 


Reference


0.16 MI N 


ROUTE 640 


[B]


0.16


IN RUSSELL COUNTY


By Resolution of the governing body dated May 02, 2022


The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the 


governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state highways.


38278151


Rte Number


751


Abandonment - Project by VDOT §33.2-912


A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):__________________________________________________________


Project/Subdivision:


Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways


From Termini


ROUTE 640 [A]


7058-097-105, G302, G303_RTE 751 ABANDONMENT


Right of Way 


Width




image2.png



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 
The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 2nd day of 
May 2022, adopted the following: 
 

RESOLUTION FOR HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES RESULTING FROM 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT 7058-097-105, G302, G303 
 
WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has developed a HUD Urban 
Renewal Site and constructed a channel change of the Clinch River circa 1981 
under Project 7058-097-105, G302, G303; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project sketch and VDOT Form(s) AM4.3, attached and 
incorporated herein as a part of this resolution, define adjustments required in 
the secondary systems of state highways as a result of that construction, and 
 
WHEREAS, a new Town of Saint Paul maintained road serves the same citizens 
as served by those portions of old secondary road identified on the project sketch 
and VDOT Form(s) AM4.3 to be abandoned, which portions no longer serve a 
public need, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department 
of Transportation to abandon Segment(s) A-B from the secondary system of state 
highways, pursuant to §33.2-912 of the Code of Virginia, and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the ___ County Board of Supervisors orders that a 
certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Resident Engineer for the 
Virginia Department of Transportation.  
 
Recorded Vote      A Copy Teste: 
Moved By:  ________________________ 
Seconded By:  ______________________ 
Yeas:  ____________________________        
Nays:               Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
  

Tracy
Highlight



 
 
  

Street Name To Termini Length

Nu
m

be
r O

f 
La

ne
s Recordation 

Reference

0.16 MI N 
ROUTE 640 

[B]
0.16

IN RUSSELL COUNTY
By Resolution of the governing body dated May 02, 2022

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of the 
governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state highways.

38278151

Rt
e 

Nu
m

be
r

751

Abandonment - Project by VDOT §33.2-912

A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):____________________________________________

Project/Subdivis
Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

From Termini

ROUTE 640 [A]

7058-097-105, G302, G303_RTE 751 ABANDONMENT

Ri
gh

t o
f W

ay
 

W
id

th



 



1 
 

 
 
The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 2nd day of  May 
2022, adopted the following: 
 

RESOLUTION FOR RURAL ADDITIONS TO THE SECONDARY SYSTEM OF STATE 
HIGHWAYS:  ROUTE 1080 EXTENSION, NORTH CEDAR ACRES 

 
WHEREAS, the street described below currently serves three or more occupied 
dwellings and was established on 4 May 1982, at which time it was used by motor 
vehicles as a public access; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has determined its subdivision ordinance satisfies subsection B 
of §33.2-335, Code of Virginia, and is therefore eligible to make qualifying additions to 
the secondary system of state highways maintained by the Virginia Department of 
Transportation and fund necessary improvements as setout therein, except as 
otherwise prohibited by subsection B of §33.2-336, Code of Virginia; and 
 
WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all property abutting this street, including 
the deeds and related plats, this Board finds no restriction on the use of public funds for 
improving of the road; and 
 
WHEREAS, after examining the ownership of all property abutting this street, this Board 
finds that speculative interest does not exist; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Board has identified immediately available funding to make 
improvements required to qualify the street for addition to the aforesaid secondary 
system of state highways, based on the Department's cost estimate of $30,000; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to §33.2-335, Code of Virginia, this Board 
requests the following street be added to the secondary system of state highways 
maintained by the Virginia Department of Transportation and hereby guarantees the 
right-of-way of the street to be clear, unencumbered and unrestricted, which right of 
way guarantee shall including any necessary easements required for cuts, fills, and 
drainage: 
 

• Subdivision Name: Cedar Acres Subdivision 
• Street Name:  North Cedar Acres 

o From: 0.20 mile Northeast of Route 657  
o To:  0.27 mile Northeast of Route 657 
o Length:  0.07 mile 

• Guaranteed Right of Way Width:  Fifty feet (50’) 
• Right of Way Instrument Reference:  Plat Book 8, Page 61 

 



2 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of 
Transportation to improve said street to the prescribed minimum standards, funding 
said improvements with the following funds;  

• Source of Funds:  FY 2023 Secondary Six-Year Plan Rural Addition Funds 
• Amount:  $30,000. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of receiving 
an invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs to relocate 
existing utilities within the right of way that are discovered during the course of and in 
conflict with the construction, drawing such funds from resources other than those 
administered by the Department; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board agrees to reimburse, within 45-days of receiving 
an invoice, all costs that the Virginia Department of Transportation incurs in the 
construction of necessary improvements to the road that are over and above the 
estimated cost of improvements or to otherwise identify an eligible source of funds 
administered by the Department to cover such costs; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Residency Administrator of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 
Recorded Vote   A Copy Teste: 
Moved By:     

Seconded By:     

Yeas:    

Nays:   Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson 
 
 
  



3 
 

 



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





 
 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1   

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding, entered into as of this 18th day of March, 2022, by and 

between the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development hereinafter referred 

to as “DHCD” and Russell County, hereinafter referred to as “GRANTEE.” 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, DHCD has been authorized by the Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia to 

distribute and administer grants of the Industrial Revitalization Fund (IRF) according to 36-152 of 

the Code of Virginia, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Dante Steam Building Restoration Project, as described in the Industrial 

Revitalization Fund (IRF) Planning Grant proposal submitted by GRANTEE, has qualified for 

funding on the basis of the IRF Planning Grant Guidelines, 

 

Now THEREFORE, the above-mentioned parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. DHCD agrees to award the GRANTEE an Industrial Revitalization Fund Planning Grant 

in an amount of the total allowable, eligible costs through the Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Fund within the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (CFDA 21.027) in 

carrying out the activities included in the scope of the work herein described not to exceed 

$50,000.00 (fifty thousand dollars).  
 

2. DHCD agrees to provide the GRANTEE with technical assistance in setting up and 

carrying out the administration of its Dante Steam Building Restoration project. 

 

3. The GRANTEE will commence, carry out and complete the scope of work, beginning on 

March 18, 2022, as described in the GRANTEE’s IRF Planning Grant proposal, and any 

subsequent, approved, written amendments to the proposal, which are made a part of this 

MOU. 

  

 PROJECT TITLE:   Dante Steam Building Restoration  

 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 50 Straight Hollow Road, Dante, VA 24237  

 

PRODUCTS:   Architectural and Engineering Services, Economic Impact 

Analysis  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95ED4443-628A-4665-A166-09B9B9C230BD

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



   
 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1   

   

 

4. GRANTEE agrees to provide a final report to DHCD by July 29, 2022.  The GRANTEE 

shall use the IRF Planning Grant Report template in CAMS to submit the final report. The 

Report shall include a summary of the approved Industrial Revitalization Fund Planning 

Grant project and its outcomes.  Studies, reports, pictures, and other documentation should 

be submitted along with the written report.  DHCD may share copies of the report with 

other interested parties identified by the State. DHCD, at its discretion, may require 

additional reports. If reports are not submitted in a timely manner, DHCD reserves the right 

to withhold payment requests until such reports are submitted. 

 

5. DHCD shall monitor the project during the period covered by this Grant Agreement. At 

any time during the Grant period, DHCD may request and shall be provided copies of any 

documents pertaining to the use of Program funds. 

 

6. The GRANTEE will use the lesser of (1) the amount specified above, or (2) if, at total 

PROGRAM completion, there are cost under-runs or project savings, these costs shall 

revert to DHCD.  

 

7. The GRANTEE shall complete the work as described in this MOU, on or before July 29, 

2022. Final requests for the funds must be made no later than July 29, 2022. Funds not 

expended by July 29, 2022 are subject to re-appropriation. If the project is not completed 

by that date, all Grant funding and this MOU shall be terminated and the GRANTEE shall 

return all unexpended funds, unless an amendment to the MOU provides otherwise. 

 

8. Grant funds will be disbursed on a reimbursement basis only. Request for funds will be 

completed through the CAMS (Centralized Application and Management System). Along 

with the reimbursement request, the Grantee will also upload and include documentation 

and proof of reimbursable expenditures (such as invoices, cancelled checks, source 

documents, etc). 

 

9. DHCD agrees to make payment to the GRANTEE upon receipt of a properly completed 

and signed invoice(s) submitted to CAMS.  Requests for Payment may be on a 

reimbursable basis upon received documentation of the required expenditure, and made to 

allow approximately thirty (30) days to receive funds.  Funds are to be immediately 

disbursed by the GRANTEE. 

 

10. To expedite receipt of payment, it is recommended that Grantees contact the Virginia 

Department of Accounts (DOA) to arrange for electronic transfer of IRF funds.  The forms 

to establish electronic payment with DOA are available at www.doa.virginia.gov.  At the 

home page, click on the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) link button on the right.  Scroll 

down to the Trading Partner Agreement and Enrollment form for Localities and Grantees.  

Print the form, fill it out and submit it.   Instructions on filling out the form are on the third 

page of the document. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95ED4443-628A-4665-A166-09B9B9C230BD

http://www.doa.virginia.gov/


   
 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1   

11. The GRANTEE must submit  one of the following financial documents: Financial 

Statement**, Reviewed Financial Statement prepared by an independent Certified Public 

Accountant (CPA), Audited Financial Statement prepared by an independent CPA or an 

OMB A-133 Audit (Single Audit) prepared by an independent CPA.  Please see the table 

below to determine which document your organization is required to submit.   

 

The threshold requirements outlined below are the minimal standards required by 

DHCD.  We strongly encourage all organizations receiving funds from DHCD to undertake 

the highest level of financial management review to ensure practices and procedures are 

fully examined and evaluated.  

 

Threshold Requirement Document 

Total annual expenditures  <$100,000 

– regardless of source 

Financial Statement prepared by 

organizations** 

Total annual expenditure  between 

$100,001 and $300,000 – regardless 

of source 

Reviewed Financial Statement prepared 

by an Independent Certified Public 

Accountant (CPA) 

Total annual expenditures 

>  $300,000  – regardless of source 

Audited Financial Statement prepared by 

an Independent CPA 

Federal expenditures >$750,000  OMB A-133 Audit (Single Audit) 

prepared by an Independent CPA 

 

The full DHCD Audit Policy, including an explanation of the specific document 

requirements, can be found online at: 

http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/images/DHCD/DHCD_Audit_Policy.pdf.  

 

12. DHCD reserves the right to end funding at any point should the project prove nonviable.  

This includes, but may not be limited to, lack of progress in conformance with the approved 

project proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95ED4443-628A-4665-A166-09B9B9C230BD

http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/images/DHCD/DHCD_Audit_Policy.pdf


   
 

 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development | Partners for Better Communities 
Main Street Centre | 600 East Main Street, Suite 300 Richmond, VA 23219 
www.dhcd.virginia.gov | Phone (804) 371-7000 | Fax (804) 371-7090 | Virginia Relay 7-1-1   

EXECUTION 

 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed or caused to be executed by their duly authorized 

official this MOU to be bound thereby. 

 

 

Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) 

 

 

BY: __________________________________ DATE: __________________ 

  

TITLE: Deputy Director, Economic Development and Community Vitality 

 

 

 

Russell County 

 

BY:  __________________________________ DATE:   __________________ 

 

TITLE: County Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95ED4443-628A-4665-A166-09B9B9C230BD

3/30/2022

3/31/2022



 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)  
 

Architectural & Engineering Services  
 

for the  
 

Dante Steam Building Restoration Project  
DHCD Planning Grant 

 
 

The County of Russell is currently seeking Architectural and Engineering Services from 
a qualified and experienced firms/consultants to provide support for the Russell County’s 
Dante Stream Building Restoration Planning Grant Project. The Board of Supervisors of 
Russell County, Virginia, hereinafter referred to as “The Board,” hereby issues to 
qualified firms and individuals, a Request for Qualifications (hereinafter referred to as 
“RFQ”).  The Board proposes to award a contract for project management services to 
assist the Board with project management services for a substantial regional tourism 
project.   
 
Statements of Qualification will be evaluated based on the following information: 
 
1.  Experience and qualifications of firms or individuals. 
2.  Offeror’s past work experience with substantial regional tourism projects. 
3.  Relevant experience in providing similar services. 
4.  Capability to meet project management, administration, time schedules, and budget 

requirements. 
5.  Experience in providing project architectural and Engineering Services associated 

with project planning grants funded by DHCD and ARC, and other federal, state, and 
regional grant agencies. 

 
Firms/consultants meeting the requirements of this RFQ are invited to submit their 
proposal.  Request for Qualifications (RFQ) are available on the County’s Website Bid 
Postings • Russell County, VA • CivicEngage (russellcountyva.us) or email 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us to request the RFQ.   
 
Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 10, 2022.  Any proposals 
received after this deadline will be returned to the offeror unopened. The County reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals.   
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The County is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
based on race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap.  
 
 

                                                                 BY ORDER OF THE 
                                                                RUSSELL COUNTY 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



From: Jim Lyttle
To: Jennifer Chumbley; Jennifer Chumbley; Jennifer Chumbley; Jennifer Chumbley; Lonzo Lester; Lou Ann Wallace;

Lou Ann Wallace; Tim Lovelace; Tim Lovelace
Cc: Alice Meade; Alice Meade; Carl Rhea; Danny Altizer; David Eaton; Jeffery Hess; Kim Short; Maddie Gordon;

Michelle Workman; Oris Christian; Rebecca Dye; Shane Farmer; Russellcountyvachamber; Steve Breeding; Steve
Breeding

Subject: Resignation
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2022 1:20:00 PM

Greetings, 

After over a decade on the Tourism Board (now the Russell County TAC) I tender my resignation
effective May 1 as the representative from District 1. It has been an honor to have held this position and
served to the best of my ability the Tourism efforts in Russell County.

My resignation is tendered at this time to ensure no appearance of involvement in any decisions made by
the County Administration concerning tourism.  I have enjoyed my involvement in promoting tourism in
Russell County. I certainly wish my best to the county as  well as the TAC in moving forward in featuring
the county. If I can assist in any fashion please let me know.

Sincerely, 

Jim Lyttle

mailto:lyttlefarm@yahoo.com
mailto:jennchumbley@gmail.com
mailto:jennifer.homenursinginc@gmail.com
mailto:jennifer.townofclevelandva@gmail.com
mailto:jennifer@homenursinginc.com
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:design_printers@email.com
mailto:lou.wallace@russellcountyva.us
mailto:tim.lovelace@russellcountyva.us
mailto:tlovelace@russell.k12.va.us
mailto:alice.meade@bvunet.net
mailto:aliceandbernard@verizon.net
mailto:carl.rhea@russellcountyva.us
mailto:abby.altizer@yahoo.com
mailto:david.eaton@russellcountyva.us
mailto:jhess@virginia.org
mailto:ksshort03@gmail.com
mailto:maddie@naturalcapital.us
mailto:mworkman@virginia.org
mailto:oris.christian@russellcountyva.us
mailto:rebecca.dye@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lebrecdir@gmail.com
mailto:russellcountyvachamber@yahoo.com
mailto:sbreeding@bvu.net
mailto:steve.breeding@russellcountyva.us
mailto:steve.breeding@russellcountyva.us
Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight





Tracy
Highlight







Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight




























































































































































	Acknowledgements.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22      5:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Acknowledgements.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22      5:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	LEO_DIV_EASEMENTS-Model.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	EASMENT -CONTOURS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	County of Russell Virginia Financial Report 06.30.2021.pdf
	Dividers
	Notes - County of Russell
	Notes - County of Russell
	Auditor's Opinion
	Exh 1
	Financial Statements - Footed
	Exh2
	Exh3
	Exh4
	Exh5
	Exh6
	Exh7
	Exh8
	Exh9
	Exh10
	Exh11

	Notes - County of Russell
	Financial Statements - Footed
	Exh12
	Exh13
	Exh14

	Russell RSI Schedules
	Pension 1
	Pension 2
	Pension 3
	Pension Notes
	OPEB-County-Standalone1
	OPEB-County-Standalone2
	OPEB-Schools-Standalone1
	OPEB-Schools-Standalone2
	GLI 1
	GLI 2
	GLI Notes
	HIC1
	HIC2
	HIC3
	HIC Notes
	Teacher HIC1
	Teacher HIC2
	Teacher HIC Notes
	LODA1
	LODA2
	LODA Notes

	Financial Statements - Footed
	Exh36
	Exh37
	Exh38

	Sch 1
	Sch 2
	Financial Statements - Footed
	Table1
	Table2
	Table3
	Table4
	Table5
	Table6
	Table7
	Table8
	Table9

	CCT Yellow Book - Material Weaknesses and Significant Deficience
	ALG UG - Unmodified Opinion No Material Weak or Sign Defic
	SEFA
	Schedule of findings and questioned costs
	Findings
	Prior Audit Findings


	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	716162 Russell Co BOS Retainer.pdf
	716162 Rusell Co BOS Retainer REVISED
	STANDARD PROVISIONS Rev 01-21-22

	016719 Russell Co BOS MOU 1.pdf
	MOU 1
	16719 Pure Salmon Schedule of Hourly Rates

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/2/22         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:




